## References

Attorney-General's Department 2011 Emergency Management Approaches http://www.em.gov.au/Emergencymanagement/Pages/ EmergencyManagementApproaches.aspx#CA

2012, National Guidelines for the National Flood Risk Information Program. Retrieved from http://www.em.gov.au/Publications/Program%20 publications/Pages/National-Guidelines-for-the-National-Flood-Risk-Information-Program.aspx.

2014, National Partnership Agreement on Natural Disaster Resilience. Retrieved from http://www.em.gov.au/npa

(n.d.), Critical Infrastructure Program for Modelling and Analysis, http://www.ag.gov.au/ NationalSecurity/InfrastructureResilience/Pages/ CriticalInfrastructureProgramfor ModellingandAnalysisCIPMA.aspx

Australian Centre for Financial Studies 2014, About ACFS, http://www.Australiancentre.com.au/AboutACFS

Australian Government 2010, *Declaration of* open government, http://www.finance.gov.au/blog/2010/07/16/declaration-open-government/

2013, *Strategic Research Priorities*, http://www. industry.gov.au/research/Documents/SRP\_fact\_ sheet\_web.PDF

Australian Institute of Health and Welfare (AIHW) 2013, *About*, https://www.aihw.gov.au/about/#prod

Australian National Data Service (n.d.), Australian National Data Service, http://www.ands.org.au/index.html

Australian Sustainable Built Environment Council (ASBEC) 2013, *A framework for improve resilience*, http://www.asbec.asn.au/asbecs-policy-platform/#Resilience

Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) 2013, *Water Information Research and Development Alliance*. Retrieved from http://www.BoM.gov.au/water/about/waterResearch/ wirada.shtml (accessed on 02/04/2014)

Bureau of Transport Economics 2001, Economic Costs of Natural Disasters in Australia, Report 103, Canberra. Capital Markets CRC Limited 2013, *About CMCRC*, http://www.cmcrc.com/index.php/home/about

Centre for International Finance and Regulation 2011, Who We Are, http://www.cifr.edu.au/site/About/Who\_ We\_Are.aspx

2013, Introduction of Targeted Research Funding Model, http://www.cifr.edu.au/site/Latest\_news/ CIFR\_Introduces\_a\_Targeted\_Research\_Funding\_ Model.aspx

Centre for Research on the Epidemiology of Disasters (CRED) 2014, *EM-DAT: The International Disaster Database*, http://www.emdat.be/

City of Gold Coast 2013, *Gold Coast Open Data Project*, http://www.businessgc.com.au/businessgcopportunities-7

Corporación OSSO 2013, *DesInventar: inventory system of the effects of disasters*, http://www.desinventar.org/en/

Council of Australian Governments (COAG) 2011, National Strategy for Disaster Resilience, Barton, http://www.em.gov.au/Documents/1National%20Strategy %20for%20Disaster%20Resilience%20-%20pdf.PDF

CSIRO 2013, Light detection and ranging (lidar), http://www.csiro.au/Outcomes/Food-and-Agriculture/ LightDetectionLidar.aspx

2014, Building a system of systems for disaster management workshop: joint issues statement, http://www.csiro.au/~/media/CSIROau/Flagships/ Digital%20Productivity%20and%20Services%20 Flagship/GCS\_images/SOSDMd/SOSDMd01-14%20 Issues%20Statement.pdf

Cyclone Testing Station 2011, *Tropical Cyclone Yasi:* Structural damage to buildings, CTS Technical Report No 57, http://www.parliament.qld.gov.au/Documents/ TableOffice/TabledPapers/2011/5311T4542.pdf

DataONE 2014, Data Observation Network for Earth, http://www.dataone.org/

Data Conservancy (n.d.) *About us*, http://dataconservancy.org/about/

Deloitte Access Economics 2013, *Building our Nation's Resilience to Natural Disasters*, report commissioned by the Australian Business Roundtable for Disaster Resilience and Safer Communities.

Department of Finance 2013, *The Government Data Landscape in Australia*, http://www.finance.gov.au/ blog/2013/10/26/government-data-landscape-Australia/

Department of Health (n.d.), *State Health Research Advisory Council (SHRAC)*, http://www.health.wa.gov.au/ researchdevelopment/home/about\_shrac.cfm

Department of Health and Ageing 2013, *Strategic Review of Health and Medical Research*, http://www.mckeonreview.org.au/downloads/Strategic\_ Review\_of\_Health\_and\_Medical\_Research\_Feb\_2013-Final\_Report.pdf

Department of Homeland Security (DHS) 2011a, National Preparedness Goal: First edition September 2011, http://www.fema.gov/media-librarydata/20130726-1828-25045-9470/national\_ preparedness\_goal\_2011.pdf

2011b, *Presidential Policy Directive/PPD-8*, http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/presidentialpolicy-directive-8-national-preparedness.pdf

2013, National Mitigation Framework, http://www.fema.gov/media-librarydata/20130726-1914-25045-9956/final\_national\_ mitigation\_framework\_20130501.pdf

(n.d.), Science and Technology Directorate, http://www.dhs.gov/science-andtechnology-directorate

Department of Industry 2012, *National Research Investment Plan*, http://www.industry.gov.au/research/ Pages/NationalResearchInvestmentPlan.aspx

Department of Industry, Innovation, Science and Research 2011, Focusing Australia's Publically Funded Research Review: Maximising the Innovation Dividend, Review Key Findings and Future Directions, http://www.innovation.gov.au/research/Documents/ ReviewAdvicePaper.pdf Department of Industry, Innovation, Science, Research and Tertiary Education (DIISRTE) 2012, 2012 National Research Investment Plan, http:// www.innovation.gov.au/research/Documents/ NationalResearchInvestmentPlan.pdf

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (DPMC) 2013, Administrative Arrangements Order made on 12 December 2013, http://www.dpmc.gov.au/parliamentary/docs/aao\_20131212\_signed.pdf

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 2013, National Flood Insurance Program: Flood Hazard Mapping, http://www.fema.gov/national-floodinsurance-program-flood-hazard-mapping

2014a, Hazus, http://www.fema.gov/hazus

2014b, *Learn about Presidential Policy Directive-8*, https://www.fema.gov/learn-about-presidential-policy-directive-8

Future Earth (n.d.), *Future Earth*: research for global sustainability, http://www.futureearth.info/

Geoscience Australia 2011, *Open Source Hydrodynamic Modelling*. GA 11-5346. Available from https://anuga. anu.edu.au/ (accessed on 03/04/2014)

2011, What Would Happen If Cyclone Tracy Hit Darwin in 2008?. Retrieved from http://www. ga.gov.au/hazards/our-capabilities/case-studies/ what-would-happen-if-cyclone-tracy-hit-darwinin-2008.html

2014, *Hazards*. Retrieved from http://www.ga.gov. au/hazards.html (accessed on 03/04/2014)

Global Facility for Disaster Reduction and Recovery (GFDRR) 2014a, *About GFDRR*, https://www.gfdrr.org/about\_gfdrr

2014b, Disaster risk assessment and monitoring, https://www.gfdrr.org/dra\_monitoring

2014c, *Knowledge and capacity enhancement*, https://www.gfdrr.org/node/67

2014d, *Knowledge center*, https://www.gfdrr.org/KnowledgeCenter 2014e, Open Data for Resilience Initiative, https://www.gfdrr.org/opendri

2014f, Services and business lines, https://www.gfdrr.org/node/43

2014g, The GFDRR labs, https://www.gfdrr.org/labs

Global Risk Information Platform (GRIP) 2014, *GRIP Global Risk Information Platform*, http://www.gripweb.org/gripweb/

GNS Science 2014, *Welcome to GNS Science*, http://www.gns.cri.nz/

Gregorowski R, MacDonald D, Flatters G, Spaven P, Pulgar D, Volgel I & Barr J 2012, *Evaluation of PreventionWeb and related UNISDR Information Services for Disaster Risk Reduction Final Report*, commissioned by UNISDR and prepared by ITAD Ltd., United Kingdom, http://www.preventionweb.net/files/27624\_ pwevalfinalreportwithannexes.pdf

Houghton J 2011, Costs and benefits of data provision: report to the Australian National Data Service, http:// www.ands.org.au/resource/houghton-cost-benefitstudy.pdf

Insurance Council of Australia (ICA) 2013, *Historical Disaster Statistics*.

Insurance Institute for Business & Home Safety 2013, *Research Center*, https://www.disastersafety.org/research-center/

Integrated Research on Disaster Risk (IRDR) 2013, Integrated Research on Disaster Risk, http://www.irdrinternational.org/

International Council for Science 2014, Disaster Risk (IRDR), http://www.icsu.org/what-we-do/ interdisciplinary-bodies/irdr/

James Cook University, Cyclone Testing Station 2011, *Tropical Cyclone Yasi Structural Damage to Buildings, CTS Technical Report 57*. Retrieved from https://www. jcu.edu.au/cts/publications/content/technical-reports/jcu-078421.pdf/view KC, Shyam 2013, Cost benefit studies on disaster risk reduction in developing countries, East Asia and the Pacific (EAP) Disaster Risk Management (DRM) knowledge notes working paper series; no. 27, World Bank, Washington DC, http://documents.worldbank. org/curated/en/2013/08/18136412/cost-benefit-studiesdisaster-risk-reduction-developing-countries

Massey University 2014a, International Centre of Excellence in Community Resilience, http://www.massey.ac.nz/massey/learning/departments/ school-of-psychology/research/disaster-research/ research-projects/icoc/icoc\_home.cfm

2014b, Joint Centre for Disaster Research, http://www.massey.ac.nz/massey/learning/ departments/school-of-psychology/research/disasterresearch/disaster-research\_home.cfm

McKinsey & Company 2014,

Learning from New York City's open-data effort, http://www.mckinsey.com/insights/public\_sector/ learning\_from\_new\_york\_citys\_open\_data\_effort

Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency Management 2007, National Civil Defence Emergency Management Strategy, http://www.civildefence.govt.nz/memwebsite. NSF/Files/National\_CDEM\_Strategy/\$file/National-CDEMstrategy-2008.pdf

2014, CDEM Research, http://www.civildefence. govt.nz/memwebsite.nsf/wpg\_url/for-the-cdemsector-cdem-research-index?opendocument

Munich Re 2014, *Loss events worldwide 2013*, Geo Risks Research, NatCatSERVICE.

National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) 2011, *GRIP Hurricane Mission*, http://www.nasa.gov/mission\_pages/hurricanes/ missions/grip/main/index.html

2014a, *Earth Observatory*, http://earthobservatory. nasa.gov/?eocn=topnav&eoci=home

2014b, *Hurricanes/Tropical* Cyclones: latest storm images and data from NASA, http://www.nasa.gov/mission\_pages/hurricanes/main/index.html

National Climate Change Adaptation Research Facility (NCCARF) 2012, *Climate change adaptation research in Australia: An overview of research funded by the National Climate Change Adaptation Research Facility*. Retrieved from: http://www.nccarf.edu.au/sites/default/ files/attached\_files\_publications/Portfolio\_small.pdf (accessed on 07/04/2014)

National Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program (NEHRP) 2009, *About Us*, http://www.nehrp.gov/about/history.htm

National Health and Medical Research Council (NHMRC) 2014a, NHMRC's role, https://www.nhmrc.gov.au/ about/organisation-overview/nhmrcs-role

2014b, Presentation by Professor Warwick Anderson AM, CEO, Perth, 26 March 2014, https:// www.nhmrc.gov.au/\_files\_nhmrc/file/about/senior\_ staff/articles/prof\_warwick\_anderson\_presentation\_ perth\_140326.pdf

National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) 2014, *Building and Fire Research Platform*, http://www.nist.gov/building-and-fire-research-platform. cfm

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) 2013, NOAA National Severe Storms Laboratory CI-FLOW: Coastal and Inland Flooding Observation and Warning Project, http://www.nssl.noaa.gov/projects/ciflow/

2014a, About NESDIS, http://www.nesdis.noaa.gov/about\_nesdis.html

2014b, NOAA Center for Tsunami Research, http://nctr.pmel.noaa.gov/

National Science Foundation (NSF) 2014, About the National Science Foundation, http://www.nsf.gov/about/

Natural Hazards Center 2014, *Our History and Mission*, http://www.colorado.edu/hazards/about/

Natural Hazards Research Platform (NHRP) 2010, Natural Hazards Platform – Research Strategy 2010-2011, http://www.naturalhazards.org.nz/NHRP/Publications/ Establishment-Strategy 2013, *About us*, http://www.naturalhazards.org.nz/NHRP/About-Us

NSW Government 2013, *NSW Government Open Data Policy*, http://finance.nsw.gov.au/ict/sites/default/files/ NSW%20Government%20Open%20Data%20Policy%20 1.0.pdf

Observatoire National des Risques Naturels (ONRN) 2013, *The National Observatory for Natural Hazards* (ONRN), http://www.onrn.fr/site/binaries/content/assets/ documents/onrn/brochure\_ang\_web.pdf

Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC) 2011, *Principles on open public sector information*, http://www.oaic.gov.au/images/ documents/information-policy/information-policyagency-resources/principles\_on\_psi\_short.pdf

Open Government Partnership 2014, What is the Open Government Partnership?, http://www.opengovpartnership.org/

Open Knowledge Foundation (n.d.), Open Data Index, https://index.okfn.org/country/

Opus International Consultants 2014, Community Resilience About Us, http://www.resilience. org.nz/index.php/pages/about#funding

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) 2014a, OECD iLibrary, http://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/

2014b, OECD International Network on the Financial Management of Large-scale Catastrophes, http://www.oecd.org/finance/insurance/oecdintern ationalnetworkonthefinancialmanagementoflargescalecatastrophes.htm

2014c, What we do and how, http://www.oecd.org/about/whatwedoandhow/

2013, Disaster Risk Financing in APEC Economies: Practices and Challenges, http://www.oecd.org/daf/ fin/insurance/OECD\_APEC\_DisasterRiskFinancing.pdf

PopTech & Rockefeller Foundation Bellagio Fellows 2013, *Seven Principles for Big Data and Resilience Projects*, http://100resilientcities.rockefellerfoundation. org/blog/entry/seven-principles-for-big-data-andresilience-projects Productivity Commission (PC) 2012, *Barriers to Effective Climate Change Adaptation*, Report No. 59, Final Inquiry Report, Canberra.

2014, *Natural Disaster Funding Arrangements*, Issues Paper, Canberra.

Project Open Data (n.d.), *Principles*, http://project-open-data.github.io/principles/

Prosser B & Peters C, 2010, 'Directions in disaster resilience policy', *The Australian Journal of Emergency Management*, 25:3.

Queensland Floods Commission, 2012, *Queensland Floods Commission of Inquiry, Final Report*. Retrieved from http://www.floodcommission.qld.gov.au/\_\_data/ assets/pdf\_file/0007/11698/QFCI-Final-Report-March-2012.pdf (accessed on 04/04/2014)

Queensland Government, 2013, *Seabed mapping*. Retrieved from http://www.qld.gov.au/environment/ coasts-waterways/beach/studies-seabed/ (accessed on 23/05/2014)

Queensland Reconstruction Authority, 2012, *Operation Queenslander Update 2011-2013*. Retrieved from http:// www.qldreconstruction.org.au/u/lib/cms2/operationqlder-update-2011-2013-4.pdf (accessed on 23/05/2014)

Regional Australia Institute 2013, From Disaster to Renewal: The Centrality of Business Recovery to Community Resilience. Retrieved from http://www. regionalAustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/ From-Disaster-to-Renewal.pdf (accessed on 07/04/2014)

Resilient Organisations Research Programme 2012, *Our funders*, http://www.resorgs.org.nz/our-funders.html

Risk Frontiers 2013, *Capability Statement*. Retrieved from http://www.riskfrontiers.com/capability. htm (accessed on 02/04/2014)

Scott G 2007, CIPMA – Critical Infrastructure Protection Modelling & Analysis, Geoscience Australia, http://www.polymtl.ca/crp/doc/GREGSCOTT-CIPMABriefingforCanada.pdf Select Council on Climate Change (SCCC) 2012, Roles and responsibilities for climate change adaptation in Australia, http://www.coag.gov.au/sites/default/ files/Roles%20and%20Responsibilities%20for%20 Climate%20Change%20Adaptation.pdf

Sirca 2014, *About Sirca*, http://www.sirca.org.au/about-sirca/

Southgate RJ, Roth C, Schneider J, Shi P, Onishi T, Wenger D, Amman W, Ogallo L, Beddington J & Murray V 2013, Using science for disaster risk reduction: report of the UNISDR Scientific and Technical Advisory Group, http://www.unisdr.org/files/32609\_ stagreport2013assembled.pdf

Terrestrial Ecosystem Research Network, 2014, *About TERN*, http://www.tern.org.au/What-is-TERN-pg22570.html

The World Bank 2012, Adaptation Guidance Notes – Key Words and Definitions.

The World Bank Group 2013, Partnership Charter, Global Facility for Disaster Reduction and Recovery, https://www.gfdrr.org/sites/gfdrr.org/files/publication/ GFDRR\_Partnership\_Charter\_2013.pdf

Trusted Information Sharing Network (TISN) (n.d.), *Critical Infrastructure Program for Modelling and Analysis*, http://www.tisn.gov.au/Documents/CIPMA+-+Fact+Sheet.PDF

United Nations (UN) 1999, Press Release SG/ SM/7060: Secretary-General to Decade for Natural Disaster Reduction, http://www.un.org/News/Press/ docs/1999/19990706.SGSM7060.html

2005, United Nations General Assembly A/ RES/60/195, http://www.unisdr.org/files/resolutions/ N0549930.pdf

2009, UNISDR Terminology on Disaster Risk Reduction, http://www.unisdr.org/we/inform/ terminology

United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) 2013, Global Risk Data Platform, http://preview.grid.unep.ch/ United Nations Office for Disaster Risk Reduction (UNISDR) 2001, *Establishment of an Advisory Scientific and Technical Group for the ISDR*, http://www.unisdr. org/files/8152\_EstablishmentofASTG2001.pdf

2007, Hyogo Framework for Action 2005-2015: Building the Resilience of Nations and Communities to Disasters, http://www.unisdr.org/files/1037\_ hyogoframeworkforactionenglish.pdf

2013a, *Global Assessment Report*, http://www.unisdr.org/we/inform/gar

2013b, Members of the UNISDR Scientific and Technical Advisory Group (STAG), http://www.preventionweb.net/files/workspace/ 7935\_scientifictechnicaladvisorygrouplis[1].pdf

2014a, *PreventionWeb*, http://www.preventionweb.net/english/themes/

2014b, What we do, http://www.unisdr.org/we

(n.d.), *DesInventar*, http://www.desinventar.net/index\_www.html

United States Government 2009a, Memorandum of the Heads of Executive Departments and Agencies: Open Government Directive, http://www.whitehouse.gov/ open/documents/open-government-directive

2009b, Memorandum for the Heads of Executive Departments and Agencies: Transparency and Open Government, http://www.whitehouse.gov/the\_press\_ office/TransparencyandOpenGovernment/

University of Melbourne 2011, *Beyond Bushfires, a study into community resilience and recovery*. Retrieved from http://newsroom.melbourne.edu/news/n-696

U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 2014, About USGS, http:// www.usgs.gov/aboutusgs/

Webb RJ & Beh J 2013, *Leading adaptation practices and support strategies for Australia: an international and Australian review of products and tools*, National Climate Change Adaptation Research Facility, Gold Coast.

World Health Organisation (WHO) 2014, *Collaborating centres*, http://www.who.int/collaboratingcentres/en/

The feedback and information provided during consultations has been an invaluable resource in putting together this report. We would like to sincerely thank the following organisations and the individuals representing them for sharing their insights and knowledge throughout the consultation process:

- Attorney-General's Department
- Australian Red Cross
- Australian Building Codes Board
- BT Financial Group
- Bushfire and Natural Hazards CRC
- Climate Risk
- CSIRO (Digital Productivity Flagship and the Climate Change Adaptation Flagship)
- · Deloitte Analytics
- Deloitte Actuaries & Consultants
- Deloitte Local Government
- Deloitte Sustainability
- Floodplain Management Association
- Geoscience Australia
- Green Cross
- Insurance Australia Group
- Insurance Council of Australia
- Investa Property Group
- James Cook University, Cyclone Testing Centre
- Land and Property Information, NSW
- Lend Lease
- Munich Re
- National Climate Change Adaptation Research Facility
- Optus
- Property Council of Australia
- Regional Australia Institute
- Risk Frontiers
- Sirca
- University of NSW (ADFA)
- University of Technology Sydney
- Westpac.